
 

 

       

 

       OFFICE OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 

    PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION  

  AGENDA 

              JULY 27, 2022 

 

 

I.    Call to Order & Roll Call 

 

II.    All speakers planning to comment at the public hearing must sign in. 

 

III.    Approval of the July 27, 2022 Planning & Zoning Agenda 

 

IV. Approval of the minutes of the June 22, 2022 Planning & Zoning  Meeting. 

 

V.    Welcome new Commission member, Kelly Hauhn 

 

VI.    Special thanks to Larry Brown 

 

VII. Open Public Hearing on the comprehensive rezoned & updated zoning map and 

supporting text amendments to the zoning ordinance. 
 

This Public Hearing was specifically called to receive comments regarding the revised draft 

Zoning Map and draft supporting Text Amendments that are necessary to implement  the 

recommendations in the newly adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

After the Public Hearing concludes, the Commission will return to a regular 

meeting.  Deliberations on Public Hearing comments will continue at a work session on August 4, 

which the public may attend,  but where no actions will be taken.  The next regular meeting of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission is scheduled for August 24, 2022.  

The Mayor and Town Council are committed to providing as much opportunity for public input 

and Commission deliberation as possible.  After the Commission submits its recommendations to 

the Town Council, the public will still have another opportunity to speak on these items at the 

Town Council's Public Hearing.   

The Public Hearing will be conducted as follows:   

1.  When the Chair reads your name, please approach the microphone. 

2.  Provide your name and address for the record. 

3.  There is a two-minute time limit to make your comments.   

 4.  Any discussion by the Commission will be held until after the Public Hearing is over.   

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

VIII. Close public hearing, resume regular meeting, and begin deliberations on public 

comments (if, and as time permits). 

 

IX.        Adjournment:  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

            8200 BAYSIDE ROAD,   P.O. BOX 400, CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 
                                        PH: (410) 257-2230                   FAX: (443) 964-5449 

 



      

 

    PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 

                                                                                   MINUTES OF THE  

                                                 PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

             JUNE 22, 2022       
                                
 

I. Commission Chair Larry Brown called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. In attendance were Kathleen 

Berault, Cynthia Greengold, and Jan Ruttkay, Commission Members, Christopher Jakubiak, 

Planning & Zoning Administrator, and Sharon L. Humm, Commission Clerk. Absent were 

Commissioners Laura Blackwelder and Kelly Hauhn. 

 

Chairman Brown wanted to bring to the Commission’s attention several items before beginning the 

evening’s meeting. 

1. Chairman Brown briefed the Commission on the status of “Group Homes”. The Commission has 

deferred consideration of zoning code related issues awaiting review by the Town’s attorney. 

Town staff will inform the Commission of attorney’s findings. 

2. Chairman Brown reported the Zoning Board of Appeals will hear a case on July 18, 2022. Mr. 

Jakubiak will provide a staff report which will be forwarded to the Commission, though no 

action is required of the Commission. 

3. Chairman Brown stated, per the Town’s zoning code, Article VIII, §290-31, the Commission 

shall prepare and adopt an annual report in accordance with the provisions of Article 66B, §3.09, 

Annotated Code of Maryland, on matters relating to the growth of the Town. Chairman Brown 

requested the Commission review the report and submit any concerns they may have. 

4. Chairman Brown stated, on tonight’s agenda, is the election of a chairman and vice-chair. 

5. Chairman Brown reported in the Commission’s packet is a memo from the Zoning Administrator 

of Immediate Text Amendments. The Town Council is requesting the Commission make these 

amendments a priority drafting a set of amendments that are complete and eliminates any 

inconsistences. The Commission will then hold a public hearing before sending the 

recommended amendments to the Council. 

6. The Town Administrator is scheduled to attend and address the Commission at its July meeting 

regarding the use of town resources. 

7. Chairman Brown provided a memo to the Commission of “agenda guidelines” that he reviewed 

with the Commission.  

8. Chairman Brown announced that a new Commission member, Kelly Hauhn, was confirmed at 

the Town Council meeting this month, though not present tonight. 

 

 

    II.    Approval of the Planning & Zoning Agenda. 

  

                          MOTION:  Commissioner Greengold moved to approve the June 22, 2022  

                          Agenda as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Berault. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Greengold moved to amend the agenda to add  

to Item #VI, the election of a Vice-Chair and 2) include in Amendment #1, the building 

height definition and height measurement standards. Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, 

all in favor. 



MOTION: Commissioner Berault moved to amend the agenda to add an amendment to 

Amendment #6.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Greengold moved to approve the agenda as amended. Seconded 

by Commissioner Berault, all in favor. 

     

    III.   Approval of the minutes of the May 25, 2022 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. 

    

MOTION:  Commissioner Berault moved to approve the minutes of the  

             May 25, 2022 Planning & Zoning meeting. Seconded by Commissioner 

Greengold. 

 

MOTION: Commissioner Greengold moved to amend the May 25, 2022 minutes, Item VI, 

to add the letters “NP” before the words “Not Permitted” in the first paragraph, last sentence. 

Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 

 

The Commission voted on the amended May 25, 2022 minutes, all in favor. 

 

IV.    Public Comment on any item on the agenda:  NOTE: There will be a 2-minute limit per 

comment.  

    

Public comment was received by: 

 

1. Chairman Brown read into record public comment from Susan Webster-Page of 3907 27th Street, 

Chesapeake Beach, MD regarding the drafted text amendment of the definition for the RV2 area. 

                               

V. Annual election of a Commission Chair and Vice-Chair. 

MOTION:  Commissioner Berault nominated Commissioner Greengold as Commission 

Chair.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 

MOTION: Commissioner Greengold nominated Commissioner Berault as Vice-Chair.  

Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 

Commissioner Greengold took over as Commission Chair. 

VI. Continue discussion of zoning ordinance changes necessary to implement the following 

recommendations in the draft Comprehensive Plan – 2021 Update for immediate term text 

amendments.  

1. Zoning Map – Mr. Jakubiak presented to the Commission the draft zoning map. This map 

reflects the comprehensive rezoning, designed to implement the land use plan. The Residential 

Village District (RV) was changed into two separate districts, RV-1 and RV-2, the Resource 

Conservation has been expanded most notably to encompass those lands that are preserved as 

part of the open space within the boundaries of existing subdivisions, such as, Chesapeake 

Village, Richfield Station, Bayview Hills. The commercial district has been changed 

substantially. The current commercial district has been changed to multiple commercial districts; 

town commercial, maritime commercial, plaza commercial and neighborhood commercial. The 

bonus density overlay district which exists on the current zoning map has now been removed. 

MOTION:  Commissioner Brown moved to approve the zoning map as presented.  

Seconded by Chair Greengold, all in favor. 



2. § 290-19 Tables, Requirements, Exceptions” Mr. Jakubiak stated this Table is being amended 

to reflect the fact that the districts have changed, which includes the two Residential Village 

districts and the four new commecial districts. Several substantial items were noted, 1)  

maximum building height (35-ft capped across the board) and 2) change in the percentage in 

open space to 35% on residential zones, RV-1, RV-2, R-MD & R-HD.  Residential Low Density 

would remain at 40%. 

 

MOTION:  Chair Greengold moved to amend the Table to increase minimum lot size in 

RV-1 and RV-2 to 7,500 square feet.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. Ayes, 

Commissioners Berault and Greengold. Opposed, Commissioners Brown and Ruttkay. 

Motion Fails. 

MOTION: Commissioner Ruttkay moved to approve the §290-19 Tables, Requirements, 

Exceptions as presented.  Seconded by Commissioner Berault, all in favor. 

3. § 290-19 N. Common Open Space Requirements - This amendment addresses common open 

space in future residential developments. Commission recommendations from last month‘s 

meeting have been incorporated for Commission consideration as follows:  

a. Purpose: Common Open Space shall be provided within each all-future residential 

developments developed lot to preserve, protect and enhance the quality and value of 

developed lands; promote the preservation of natural and scenic areas; protect sensitive 

natural resource areas; for the natural retention of stormwater and floodwaters; and to 

promote access to light, open air, and recreational opportunities for the health and public 

welfare of residents.  

b. Identification: Common Open Space shall mean landscaped or undeveloped land used for 

outdoor active and passive recreational purposes or for Critical Area or resource land 

protection, including structures incidental to these open space uses, including required 

buffers, but excluding land occupied by structures or impervious surfaces not related to the 

open space uses and yards required by this chapter.  

c. A minimum of 1,000 square feet per housing unit of Common Open Space shall be 

provided and no less than 75% of such open space shall be improved as recreational area. 

d. Common Open Space shall be owned and maintained by a Homeowners Association or 

similar entity. 

e. No part of the Common Open Space requirement of this section shall not be satisfied 

through a payment of a fee-in-lieu of providing that space.  

 

MOTION: Chair Greengold moved to approve §290-19N with the deletion of the 

word “each” in paragraph “a”, and the deletion of the word “not” in paragraph “e”, 

and to add an additional bullet “f.  this applies to developments with three or more 

housing units”.  Seconded by Commissioner Berault, all in favor. 

4. Amendments related to Tourist Homes ((aka Short-Term Rental) - Mr. Jakubiak directed the 

Commission to the Land Use Table, item #34. Currently tourist home is grouped with motel, hotel. 

Staff is recommending “Tourist Home“ be its own separate line item allowing only conditional use 

in neighborhood commercial and town commercial.  

a.  Amend Section 290-43, Terms Defined to insert the term “Tourist Home” that the Town 

Council approved by resolution, as follows: 

“Tourist Home”(aka Short-Term Rental) A residential building, that is rented commercially in 

whole or in part, or a separate dwelling unit accessory to such a building that is rented 



commercially, in which paying guests are provided, with or without prearrangement, overnight 

accommodations on a short-term basis for commercial compensation.” 

b. Amend Section 290-11R to remove references to Tourist Homes, add a new 290-11S and 

re-letter the subsequent sections accordingly.  The new section 290-11S would read as 

follows: 

 

“Tourist Home (aka Short-Term Rental): Conditional use in the NC and TC Districts, subject to 

requirements of the district where located and the conditions herein provided:  

a. The use shall be contained within a single-family dwelling or dwelling unit accessory to a 

single-family dwelling permitted in the zone where located. 

 

b. The lot shall have at least two on-site parking spaces.  

c. The Applicant shall submit a parking plan with the zoning permit application demonstrating 

that there is at least one off-street parking place for every two adults permitted to stay and 

the zoning permit shall restrict Tourist Home occupancy accordingly.  

 

After a lengthy discussion the Commission made the following motions: 

MOTION: Commissioner Berault moved to approve amending Section 290-43, Terms 

Defined, to insert the term “Tourist Home” with the definition as presented above.  

Seconded by Chair Greengold, all in favor. 

MOTION: Commissioner Berault moved to amend the new section 290-11S as described 

above, to change the use in the NC (Neighborhood Commercial) and TC (Town 

Commercial) from “C” Conditional use to “NP” Not Permitted use, as well as, “NP” Not 

Permitted in the PC (Plaza Commercial) and MC (Maritime Commercial), thus having all 

commercial districts as “NP”. Seconded by Chair Greengold, all in favor.  

5.    Continue discussion on changes to the Amended Table – Mr. Jakubiak stated there is a 

Table, 290 Attachment 1, Land Use Classifications, in the zoning ordinance which shows what 

uses are permitted in each zoning district. Mr. Jakubiak presented below the following changes 

to be made in the Table for Commission consideraion. The Commission reviewed each line 

beginning with line #18 through line #53 of the Table. 

        # 18.  Office or clinic:  Delete from RV-2  

      # 33.  Rooming, Boarding, Lodging: delete entire line  

      # 34.  Motel, Hotel, Tourist Home: delete tourist home  

                Add new line: Tourist Home  

     #42.  Marina: Change additional Use Regulations from 290-W to 290-X 

     #43.  Transformer station:  Change additional Use Regulations from 290-X to 290-Y 

     #45.  Light Industrial Uses: delete entire line  

     #48.  Customary Home (1):  Change additional Use Regulations from 290-Y to 290-Z 

     #49.  Customary Home (2):  Change additional Use Regulations from 290-Z to 290-AA 

     #50.  Garage:  Change additional Use Regulations from 290-AA to 290-BB 

     #51.  Carnival:  Change additional Use Regulations from 290-BB to 290-CC 

     #52.  Temporary Building:  Change additional Use Regulations from 290-CC to 290-DD 

 

MOTION: Chair Greengold moved to amend the Table, item #40, to remove the sale of 

automobiles.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. Ayes, Commissioners Berault, 

Greengold, and Ruttkay. Opposed, Commissioner Brown. Motion Fails. 



 MOTION: Commissioner Ruttkay moved to approve the changes to the Amended Table for 

Planning Commission Review, Proposed Revision – 290 Attachment 1, Land Use 

Classifications, as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Berault, all in favor. 

Mr. Jakubiak will repeal the current Table and replace with approved amended Table. 

The following Text Amendments were previously approved by the Commission and will be 

included with the final recommended Zoning Code changes to be presented to the Town 

Council.  

Amendment #1 

Amend Section 290-19 to remove the method for measuring building height for multifamily and 

commercial buildings which allows building height to be taken from the first floor of the livable 

space when off-street parking is provided underneath that livable space, by deleting subsection (2) 

as follows: 

§ 290-19  L. Height exceptions to maximum regulations. 

Church spires, chimneys, antennas, and other structures normally built or located above the roof and 

not devoted to human occupancy may exceed the height regulations of the district in which they are 

located by one foot for every one foot of setback of the structure (e.g., chimney, spire) from the 

closest side lot line. 

 
a.  For multiple family dwellings and commercial uses, the finished lot grade used to 

establish the maximum building height shall be considered the first floor of living 

space, measured at the front door, for any structure for which off-street parking is 

provided underneath the living space, so long as the off-street parking space is no 

higher than one foot for every one foot of setback of the structure from the closest lot 

line.  

 

MOTION: Chair Greengold moved to amend Section 290-43, Terms Defined, to redefine 

the definition of building height as follows: “The height of any building shall be the vertical 

distance of the highest point of the structure to the average natural grade level prior to 

construction, or any site improvements. The highest point also includes any rooftop deck, 

fence, railing, widow’s walk, or other rooftop addition that is used as an accessory structure.  

Seconded by Commissioner Berault. 

MOTION: Chair Greengold amended her motion to read as follows: The height of any 

building shall be the vertical distance of the highest point of the structure to the average 

natural grade level prior to construction, or any site improvements. The highest point also 

includes any rooftop deck, fence, railing, widow’s walk, or other rooftop addition that is 

used as an accessory structure. The height of any structure shall not exceed 35 feet and/or 

two and a half (21/2) stories. Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. 

Chair Greengold retracked her motion and stated the Commission will revisit this at next 

month’s meeting. 

Amendment #2 

Amend Section 290-15, Bonus Density Overlay District to eliminate the ability of the Planning 

Commission, through its authority to approve site plans, to authorize an increase in the height of a 



buildings located within the Bonus Density Overlay District up to 50 feet, by deleting subsection E, 

as follows: 

E. Building height. For the purposes of this section and provided that the conditions set forth 

in Subsection D above are met, the Planning commission may authorize an increase in height of 

multifamily buildings to a maximum of 50 feet measured to the eave, plus a habitable roof, provided 

that the side yard setbacks shall be not less than 25% of the building height, measure to the highest 

point on the roofline, or 10% of the building width, which is greater. 

Amendment #3 

Repeal Article IV, 290-15 Bonus Density Overly District in its entirely and renumber the remaining 

two sections accordingly. Also, make clerical changes to remove all references to the Bonus Density 

Overlay district wherever they may appear in the Zoning Ordinance.  

MOTION: Commissioner Brown moved to eliminate Amendment #2 and approve 

Amendment #3 to repeal Article IV, 290-15 Bonus Density Overlay District in its entirety 

and renumber the remaining two sections accordingly, along with making clerical changes to 

remove all references to the  Bonus Density Overlay District wherever they may appear in 

the Zoning Ordinance. Seconded by Commissioner Berault, all in favor. 

 Amendment #4 

Amend Section §290-9, Purpose and Intent of Districts as noted below to add a purpose statement 

for a new district called Residential Village-1 (RV-1) and change the name associated with the 

existing purpose statement from Residential Village to Residential Village-2 (RV-2): 

§ 290-9  E. RV-1 Residential Village District-1. The RV-1 District is intended to protect 

the single-family residential character, allowing detached houses that are compatible in 

design and scale with the prevailing residential uses and the existing pattern of buildings, 

streets, and blocks. 

§ 290-9  F. R-V RV-2 Residential Village District-2. The R-V RV-2 District is intended to 

protect the primarily single-family residential character while accommodating a variety of housing 

types and to encourage and facilitate redevelopment and infill that is compatible in use, scale, and 

impact with residential use and the existing pattern of buildings, streets, and blocks. 

MOTION:  Commissioner Brown moved to approve amending Section §290-9 Purpose and 

Intent of Districts, Residential Village-RV, to divide the RV District into two separate 

districts, RV-1 and RV-2, and add the presented purpose statements for each with a 

modification to RV-2 district of deleting from the third sentence the words “and to 

encourage and facilitate redevelopment and infill”. Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all 

in favor. 

Amendment #5 

Amend Section 290-9, Purpose and Intent of Districts as noted below to eliminate the Commercial 

and Maritime Districts, replacing them with four new commercial districts and adding a purpose 

statement for each new district: 

§ 290-9  F. C Commercial District. The Commercial District is intended to provide locations 

for commercial and other non-residential uses that are compatible in scale and impact with nearby 



residential neighborhoods, and to protect and provide a safe and attractive environment for 

shopping, entertainment and community gathering. 

§ 290-9  G.  M Maritime District. The Maritime Districts intended to promote a variety of land 

use that are water-related and/or benefit from location near the water while at the same time 

encouraging the gradual re-emergence of the natural systems found near the water and the 

protection of commercial marine activities that have become the Town’s waterfront heritage. 

§ 290-9  G.  NC Neighborhood Commercial District.  The Neighborhood Commercial District 

is intended to provide locations for small scale and low impact commercial uses that are designed 

and operated in a manner compatible in scale and impact with nearby residential neighborhoods. 

§ 290-9  H. TC Town Commercial District. The Town Commercial District is intended to 

provide locations for commercial uses that are harmonious in scale and impact with nearby 

residential neighborhoods, and to protect and provide a safe and attractive environment for 

shopping, entertainment and community gathering. 

§ 290-9  I. CP Commercial Plaza District. The Commercial Plaza District is intended to 

maintain the Town’s primary location for larger format locally serving retail uses such as grocery 

stores and shopping center, where extensive parking can be readily accommodated. 

§ 290-9  J. MC Maritime Commercial. The Maritime Districts intended to promote a variety 

of land use that are water-related and/or benefit from location near the water while at the same time 

encouraging the gradual re-emergence of the natural systems found near the water and the 

protection of commercial marine activities that have become the Town’s waterfront heritage.  

§290-9 J.  MC Maritime Commercial District. The Maritime Commercial District is intended 

to promote a variety of non-residential recreation and commercial uses that enhance the Town’s 

waterfront heritage, respects the sensitive nature of the surrounding environment and are consistent 

in character and impact with the following: 

o Promoting active and vibrant commercial activities at the street (grade) level where 

walking is safe and enjoyable 

o Establishing public pedestrian access to and along the waterfronts  

o Preserving the remaining scenic vistas to the Chesapeake Bay (on the east) side and the 

expansive Fishing Creek marsh (on the west). 

 

MOTION: Commissioner Brown moved to approve §290-9, Purpose and Intent of Districts 

as presented, to eliminate the Commercial and Maritime Districts, replacing them with the 

four new commercial districts above and adding a purpose statement for each new district.  

Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 

Amendment #6 

Amend the purpose statement for the Resource Conservation District in Section 290-9, Purpose 

and Intent of Districts to bring it into better conformance with the guidance of the 2021 update of 

the Comprehensive Plan, as follows: 

§ 290-9  RC Resource Conservation District. The Resource Conservation District is intended to 

protect and maintain wetlands, surface waters, steep slopes, forests, areas with elevated risks of 

flooding, and barren lands identified in the Town’s Chesapeake Bay Critical Area Protection 



Program and other environmentally sensitive areas; to provide locations for parkland, flood 

management, recreational activities, and access to the water and Bay; and to avoid intense 

development and the placement of residential uses in areas on lands not suitable for such 

development and uses including areas subject to increased risk of flooding and otherwise 

protect public safety; to allow, under very stringent requirements,  mixture of residential 

recreational and marine commercial activities through the Town’s growth allocation method. and 

to acquire or otherwise prevent from further development, all parcels that were dedicated for 

open space, forest conservation, stormwater management, and wildlife habitats, as a 

condition for the development of previously approved Residential Planned Communities or 

for communities built on lands annexed through the Town’s Growth Allocation Floating 

District. 

Commissioner Berault submitted to the Commission, a modified version of the Resource 

Conservation District purpose statement for consideration. After review and discussion, and a few 

minor adjustments by the Commission, the new purpose statement would read as follows: 

 § 290-9  RC Resource Conservation District. The Resource Conservation District is intended to 

protect and maintain environmentally sensitive areas, including wetlands and surface waters; 

forests and open space; steep slopes, as well as low lying areas with elevated risks of flooding. The 

RCD is intended  to protect and maintain land use in critical flood and stormwater management; to 

provide land for community parks and recreational activites, including access to the bay and its 

tributaries; to ensure that any new use complies with all environmental protection and land use laws 

and preservation agreements of the Town of Chesapeake Beach and the State of Maryland; to allow 

the Town of Chesapeake Beach to acquire land to ensure its preservation and prevent residential 

development where all parcels have been dedicated for Open Space, Forest Conservation, 

stormwater management and wildlife habitats (as a condition for the development of previously 

approved Residential Planned Communities, or for communities built on lands annexed through the 

Town’s Growth Allocation Floating District). 

MOTION: Commissioner Berault moved to amend the presented Resource Conservation 

District purpose statement to the above modified version agreed upon by the Commission.  

Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 

Mr. Jakubiak stated this language would be reviewed by the Town’s attorney. 

 

Commissioner Brown asked Mr. Jakubiak exactly what uses are permitted in the Resource 

Conservation District.  

After further review of the Resource Conservation District and its Permitted Uses, the Commission 

made the following motions: 

 MOTION:  Chair Greengold moved to amend the Amended Table for Planning 

Commission Review, Proposed Revision 290 Attachment 1, Land Use Classifications, Item 

#36 to change “SE” (Special Exception) classification to “NP” (Not Permitted) in the 

Resource Conservation District.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor.  

 MOTION: Chair Greengold moved to amend the Amended Table for Planning Commission 

Review, Proposed Revision 290 Attachment 1, Land Use Classifications, Line Item “Craft 

and artisan assembly and manufacturing such as cabinet making, woodworking……..” to 



change “SE” (Special Exception) classification to “NP” (Not Permitted) in the Resource 

Conservation District.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 

The Commission will hold a public hearing at its next meeting, July 27, 2022 to receive 

public comment on the comprehensive rezoned and updated zoning map and supporting text 

amendments to the zoning ordinance. 

  

VII. Public Comment- None Received. 

 

    VII.     Adjournment:   

        

 There being no further comments, Chairman Brown moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:45 

PM, all in favor.   

 

    Submitted by,  

 

 

 

    Sharon L. Humm 

Commission Clerk                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
 

 

 

 

 

Note: This meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Town website on the Planning 

Commission page www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov.  

                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
     8200 BAYSIDE ROAD, P. O. BOX  400, CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MD 20732 

  (410)-257-2230          (301) 855-8398 

http://www.chesapeakebeachmd.gov/


Page 1 of 7 

TOWN OF CHESPAEAKE BEACH  
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS  
FOR CONSIDERATION AT THE PUBLIC HEARING ON JULY  27, 2022 

 
 
Key to changes: 
Text to be added:   bold font 
Text to be removed:  strikethough 

 

 

 
 
Amendment 1 

 
Amend Section 290-19A, Tables, Requirements, Exceptions as noted below to change the 
maximum building height in the Residential High-Density (R-HD) district from 50 feet to 35 feet 
and in the Maritime (M) district from 70 feet to 35 feet. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

35
 

35
 



Page 2 of 7 

 

Amendment 2 
 
 
Amend Section 290-19 to remove the method for measuring building height for multifamily and 
commercial buildings which allows building height to be taken from the first floor of the livable 
space when off-street parking is provided underneath that livable space, by deleting subsection 
(2) as follows: 
 
 
L. Height exceptions to maximum regulations. 
 

(1) Church spires, chimneys, antennas, and other structures normally built or located 
above the roof and not devoted to human occupancy may exceed the height 
regulations of the district in which they are located by one foot for every one foot of 
setback of the structure (e.g., chimney, spire) from the closest side lot line. 

 
(2)  For multiple family dwellings and commercial uses, the finished lot grade used to 

establish the maximum building height shall be considered the first floor of living 
space, measured at the front door, for any structure for which off-street parking is 
provided underneath the living space, so long as the off-street parking space is no 
higher than one foot for every one foot of setback of the structure from the closest 
lot line.  

 
 

Amendment 3 
 
Amend Section 290-15, Bonus Density Overlay District to eliminate the ability of the Planning 
Commission, through its authority to approve site plans, to authorize an increase in the height 
of a buildings located within the Bonus Density Overlay District up to 50 feet, by deleting 
subsection E, as follows: 
 
E. Building height. For the purposes of this section and provided that the conditions set 

forth in Subsection D above are met, the Planning commission may authorize an 
increase in height of multifamily buildings to a maximum of 50 feet measured to the 
eave, plus a habitable roof, provided that the side yard setbacks shall be not less than 
25% of the building height, measure to the highest point on the roofline, or 10% of the 
building width, which is greater. 

 

 
 



Page 3 of 7 

 
Amendment 4 
 
Repeal section Article IV, 290-15 Bonus Density Overly District in its entirely and renumber the 
remaining two sections accordingly. Also, make clerical changes to remove all references to the 
Bonus Density Overlay district wherever they may appear in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

 
Amendment 5  
 
Amend Section 290-9, Purpose and Intent of Districts as noted below to add a purpose 
statement for a new district called Residential Village-1 (RV-1) and change the name associated 
with the existing purpose statement from Residential Village to Residential Village-2 (RV-2): 
 
E. RV-1 Residential Village District-1. The RV-1 District is intended to protect the single-
family residential character, allowing detached houses that are compatible in design and scale 
with the prevailing residential uses and the existing pattern of buildings, streets, and blocks. 
 
F. R-V RV-2 Residential Village District-2. The R-V RV-2 District is intended to protect the 
primarily single-family residential character while accommodating a variety of housing types and 
to encourage and facilitate redevelopment and infill that is compatible in use, scale, and impact 
with residential use and the existing pattern of buildings, streets, and blocks. 
Note on Clerical Change: The strikethrough of the part of the text highlighted in green above was added after the initial publication 
of this document so that it now accurately reflects the intention of the Planning Commission. Date of correction: July 14, 2022.   

 

Amendment 6  
 
Amend Section 290-9, Purpose and Intent of Districts as noted below to eliminate the 
Commercial and Maritime Districts, replacing them with four new commercial districts and 
adding a purpose statement for each new district: 
 
F. C Commercial District. The Commercial District is intended to provide locations for 

commercial and other non-residential uses that are compatible in scale and impact with 
nearby residential neighborhoods, and to protect and provide a safe and attractive 
environment for shopping, entertainment and community gathering. 

 
G. M Maritime District. The Maritime Districts intended to promote a variety of land use 

that are water-related and/or benefit from location near the water while at the same time 
encouraging the gradual re-emergence of the natural systems found near the water and 
the protection of commercial marine activities that have become the Town’s waterfront 
heritage. 

 



Page 4 of 7 

G. NC Neighborhood Commercial District.  The Neighborhood Commercial District is 
intended to provide locations for small scale and low impact commercial uses that are 
designed and operated in a manner compatible in scale and impact with nearby 
residential neighborhoods. 

 
H. TC Town Commercial District. The Town Commercial District is intended to provide 

locations for commercial uses that are harmonious in scale and impact with nearby 
residential neighborhoods, and to protect and provide a safe and attractive 
environment for shopping, entertainment and community gathering. 

 

I. CP Commercial Plaza District. The Commercial Plaza District is intended to maintain the 
Town’s primary location for larger format locally serving retail uses such as grocery 
stores and shopping center, where extensive parking can be readily accommodated. 

 
J. MC Maritime Commercial. The Maritime Districts intended to promote a variety of land 

use that are water-related and/or benefit from location near the water while at the same 
time encouraging the gradual re-emergence of the natural systems found near the water 
and the protection of commercial marine activities that have become the Town’s 
waterfront heritage.  

 
The MC District is intended to promote a variety of non-residential recreation and 
commercial uses that enhance the Town’s water front heritage, respects the sensitive 
nature of the surrounding environment and are consistent in character and impact with 
the following: 
 
• Promoting active and vibrant commercial activities at the street (grade) level where 

walking is safe and enjoyable 
• Establishing public pedestrian access to and along the waterfronts  
• Preserving the remaining scenic vistas to the Chesapeake Bay (on the east) side and 

the expansive Fishing Creek marsh (on the west). 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 7 

Amendment 7 
 
Amend the purpose statement for the Resource Conservation District in Section 290-9, Purpose 
and Intent of Districts to bring it into better conformance with the guidance of the update of the 
Comprehensive Plan, as follows: 
 
RC Resource Conservation District. The Resource Conservation District is intended to protect 
and maintain wetlands, surface waters, forests and open space, steep slopes, as well as low 
lying areas with elevated risks of flooding. forest and barren lands identified in the Town’s 
Chesapeake Bay Critical Area Protection Program and other environmentally sensitive areas; to 
provide locations for parkland, recreational activities, and access to the water and Bay; to avoid 
intense development on lands not suitable for development; and to allow, under very stringent 
requirements, a mixture of residential, recreational, and marine commercial activities through 
the Town’s growth allocation method. The RC District is intended to protect and maintain land 
use in critical flood and stormwater management; to provide land for community parks and 
recreational activities, including access to the Bay and its tributaries; to ensure that any new use 
complies with all environmental protection and land use laws and preservation agreements of 
the Town of Chesapeake Beach and the State of Maryland; to allow the Town of Chesapeake 
Beach to acquire land to ensure its preservation and prevent residential development where all 
parcels that were dedicated for Open Space, Forest Conservation, stormwater management, 
and wildlife habitats (as a condition for the development of previously approved Residential 
Planned Communities or for communities built on lands annexed through the Town’s Growth 
Allocation Floating District). 

 
 
Amendment 8 
  
Amend Section 290-43, Terms Defined to insert and define the term “Tourist Home”, as follows: 
 
Tourist Home (aka Short-Term Rental) A residential building, that is rented commercially in 
whole or in part, or a separate dwelling unit accessory to such a building that is rented 
commercially, in which paying guests are provided, with or without prearrangement, overnight 
accommodations on a short-term basis for commercial compensation.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 7 

Amendment 9 
 
Amend Section 290-19N to establish a requirement for common open space in housing 
developments, as follows: 
 
 
N. Common Open Space Requirements 
 

(1) Purpose: Common Open Space shall be provided within each all future residential 
developments developed lot to preserve, protect and enhance the quality and value of 
developed lands; promote the preservation of natural and scenic areas; protect sensitive 
natural resource areas; for the natural retention of stormwater and floodwaters; and to 
promote access to light, open air, and recreational opportunities for the health and 
public welfare of residents.  

 
(2) Identification: Common Open Space shall mean landscaped or undeveloped land used 

for outdoor active and passive recreational purposes or for Critical Area or resource land 
protection, including structures incidental to these open space uses, including required 
buffers, but excluding land occupied by structures or impervious surfaces not related to 
the open space uses and yards required by this chapter.  

 
(3) A minimum of 1,000 square feet per housing unit of Common Open Space shall be 

provided and no less than 75% of such open space shall be improved as recreational 
area. 

 
(4) Common Open Space shall be owned and maintained by a Home Owners Association 

or similar entity. 
 

(5) No part of the Common Open Space requirement of this section shall be satisfied 
through a payment of a fee-in-lieu of providing that space.  
 

(6) The Common Open Space requirement of this section applies to developments with 
three or more housing units. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 7 

Amendment 10 
 
 
This is largely a clerical change that updates a table of lot and bulk standards. The two 
exceptions to this relate to building height and the minimum percent of open space on lots.  
 
Amend Section 290-19, Tables to eliminate the Residential Village (RV) District and replace it 
with the new RV-1 and RV-2 Districts and eliminate the Commercial (C ) District and Maritime 
District and replace them with the Neighborhood Commercial (NC), Town Commercial (TC), 
Commercial Plaza (CP), and Maritime Commercial (MC) Districts. 
 
The lot and bulk regulations of the old districts are used for the new set of zoning districts, 
except that the maximum building height in the R-HD district is reduced from 50 feet to 35 feet 
and the maximum building height in the Maritime District (70-feet) is not carried forward into 
the new Maritime Commercial District. The maximum building height would be 35 feet.  
 
Also with this amendment, the minimum open space requirement on lots in the R-HD, RV-1, and 
RV-2 Districts is changed from 15% to 35%.  
 
 

 

Removed Text is shown as:      with strikethrough
New text is shown as:              in Bold

290-19 Tables; requirements; exceptions

R-LD R-MD R-HD RV RV-1 RV-2 C NC TC CP M MC RC

A. Minimum lot size ( sq. feet except where noted )
1 10,000 7,500   5,000    6,000   6,000   6,000   5,000   5,000   5,000   5,000   5,000   5,000   43,560  

B. Average minimum lot area per dwelling unit (sq. ft.)2 - - 2,500    5,000   6,000   5,000   3,600   n/a 3,600   n/a 3,600   n/a n/a

C. Minimum lot width (feet)3 75       50        50        50        50        50        25        50        50        50        25        50        150      

R-LD R-MD R-HD RV RV-1 RV-2 C NC TC PC M MC RC

A. D. Minimum front yard setback (feet) 15       15        15        15        15        15        10        10        10        10        10        10        25        

B. E. Minimum side yard setback (feet) 8         8         8          8         8         8         8         8         8         8         8         8         75        

C. F. Minimum rear yard setback (feet) 20       20        20        20        20        20        20        20        20        20        20        20        25        

D. G. Minimum open space 40% 35% 15% 35% 15% 35% 35% 15% 15% 15% 15% 20% 15% 60%

E. H. Maximum building height (feet) 35       35        50 35 35        35        35        35        35        35        35        70        35        35        

1Lot areas must conform to State and County Health Department requirements.

3The minimum lot width for lots with single-family dwellings without public water and sewer is 100 feet.

2Appllies only to townhouse and multifamily dwellings. The average lot area of all dwellings on the lot shall equal or exceed that set forth above, provided that no lot is created with a lot area less than 2,000 
square feet. Dwellings in the TC District are permitted within a building in combination with a permitted commercial use.

A. Tables of dimensional requirements. The regulations for each district pertaining to minimum lot area, minimum lot area per dwelling unit, minimum lot width, maximum height, 

and minimum required yards shall be as specified in the Table of Dimensional Requirements set forth below.



Text Amendment 11: NEW TABLE 1, PERMITTED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT

R-LD R-MD R-HD RV-1 RV-2 NC TC CP MC RC RPC

Residential Uses

1.    Single-family, detached P P P P P P P NP NP NP P

2.    Single-family, attached NP P P NP P NP NP NP NP NP P

3.    Townhouse dwelling NP NP P NP P NP NP NP NP NP P

4.    Multifamily dwelling NP NP P NP P NP NP NP NP NP P

5.    Dwelling, accessory C C C C C C C NP NP NP C See § 290-11A

6.    Dwelling unit in combination with 

commercial use
NP NP NP NP C NP C NP NP NP C See § 290-11B

7.    Churches and other places of worship, 

provided housing for religious personnel shall 

meet the minimum requirements of Uses 1 

through 4 as applicable.

SC SC NP C C P P P NP NP C

See § 290-11C

This amendment repeals and replaces Section 290 Attachement 1, Table 1. The proposed new table is provided here:

290 Attachment 1

Table 1

Land Use Classifications

KEY:
P:          Permitted,                                                                                                                                                                                                                NP:       

Not Permitted

C:         Conditional Use - permitted use subject to conditions                             

SE:       Special Exception                                                                                                                                                                                                      SC:       

Special Exception, subject to conditions

Use

Zoning Districts Conditions or 

Additional Use 

Regulations

Institutional, Recreational and Educational Uses



R-LD R-MD R-HD RV-1 RV-2 NC TC CP MC RC RPC

8.    Public/Private schools
SC SC NP SC SC NP NP NP SC NP SC See § 290-11D

9.    Home day care C C SE C C C C NP C NP C See § 290-11E

10.  Day-care center, nursery school, kindergarten 

or other agency giving care to persons as a 

commercial operation
SC SC NP NP C P P NP NP NP C See § 290-11F

11.  Professional school, studio for music or art 

instruction, dancing school, similar NP NP NP SC SC P P P P NP SC See § 290-11G

12.  Library, museum, community center, adult 

education center or similar open to the public or 

connected with a permitted use and not conducted 

as a private business

NP NP NP NP C P P P P NP C See § 290-11H

13. Environmental science, research and 

educational uses, nature centers NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P NP

14. Game, wildlife, and nature preserves
NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P NP

15. Public building or recreational facility owned 

and operated by Chesapeake Beach or other 

government agency

P P P P P P P P P P P

16. Parks, playgrounds P P P P P P P P P P P

17.  Private club, lodge, dining club, yacht club 

not run as a private gainful business NP NP NP NP NP P P NP P SE SE

18. Sailing schools, boat rentals and storage and 

similar water oriented recreational uses NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P NP

Use

Zoning Districts
Conditions or 

Additional Use 

Regulations



19. Orphanage, nursing home, or other licensed 

establishment for the care of aged, disabled, or 

convalescent persons, etc.
SE NP NP C C NP NP NP NP NP C See § 290-11I

20.  Group home SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE NP NP SE



R-LD R-MD R-HD RV-1 RV-2 NC TC CP MC RC RPC

21.  Professional office in residence, physician, 

architect, lawyer, similar
NP NP NP C C P P P P NP C See § 290-11J

22.  Office or clinic for medical or dental 

examination or treatment of persons as outpatient, 

including laboratories incidental thereto NP NP NP NP NP P P P P NP P

23.  Therapeutic massage NP NP NP NP NP C C C C NP NP See § 290-11K

24.  Offices for business, professional, or 

governmental purposes
NP NP NP C C P P P P NP C See § 290-11L

25.  Artists, photographer’s gallery, studio NP NP NP C C P P P P NP C See § 290-11M

26.  Retail establishments carrying one type of 

interrelated goods, such as a bookstore, gift shop, 

florist shop, etc.; adult bookstores are prohibited
NP NP NP C C P P P P NP C See § 290-11N

27.  Retail convenience stores and retail 

establishments carrying commodities which tend 

to be purchased on a comparison basis, such as a 

food supermarket, department store, discount 

store, pharmacy, etc.

NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP

28. Tree and plant nurseries, landscape supply and 

contracting, greenhouses NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P NP

29.  Personal services, including barbershops, 

salons, laundry, dry cleaning (receiving stations), 

travel agency, insurance, real estate, repair shop 

for shoes, bikes, watches, locks, etc.

NP NP NP C C P P P P NP C See § 290-11O

Use

Zoning Districts
Conditions or 

Additional Use 

Regulations

Office and Commercial Uses



R-LD R-MD R-HD RV-1 RV-2 NC TC CP MC RC RPC

30.  Financial service, bank NP NP NP NP NP P P P P NP NP

31.  Business services, printing, copying, 

contractor’s shop, plumbing shop
NP NP NP NP NP P P P P NP NP

32.  Appliance and furniture repair, upholstery
NP NP NP NP NP P P P P NP NP

33.  Restaurant – Class I; drive-up/drive- through 

windows at fast-food restaurants are prohibited NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P NP NP

34.  Restaurant - Class II NP NP NP NP NP P P P P NP NP

35.  Restaurant - Class III NP NP NP NP NP P P P P NP NP

36.  Tavern, nightclub NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP

37.  Bed-and-breakfast establishment SC C C C C C C C C NP C See § 290-11P

38.  Motel, hotel NP NP NP NP NP NP C C C NP NP See § 290-11R

39. Tourist home NP NP NP NP NP NP C NP C NP NP NP NP See § 290-11S

40.  Entertainment and recreation facilities 

operated as a business within a building, with the 

exception of an adult bar, restaurant, or nightclub
NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP

41. Recreational and fitness studios NP NP NP NP NP P P P P NP NP

42.  Outdoor entertainment and recreation 

facilities operated as a gainful business NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP

43. Recreational camps and cottages for overnight 

accommodations NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP SE NP

44.  Animal hospital, veterinarian clinic
NP NP NP NP NP NP SC SC SC NP SC See § 290-1TS

Use

Zoning Districts Conditions or 

Additional Use 

Regulations

Zoning Districts Conditions or 

Additional Use 



R-LD R-MD R-HD RV-1 RV-2 NC TC CP MC RC RPC

Automotive and Boat Service Uses

45.  Nonresidential parking area located in a 

residential district
NP SE SE SE SE NP NP NP NP NP SE

46.  Automotive service station NP NP NP NP NP NP SC NP SC NP NP See § 290-11UT

47.  Sale or rental of automobiles NP NP NP NP NP NP SC NP SC NP NP See § 290-11VU

48.  Repair garage, including paint spraying and 

body and fender work or car washing facility NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP SC NP NP See § 290-1WV

49.  Marina, including fuel service for watercraft, 

boat storage and repair yard, boat sales and 

service
NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP C C NP See § 290-1XW

50.  Transformer station, structure housing 

switching equipment and regulators, power 

transmission line right-of-way, radio, television 

transmitter tower, cellular tower, etc.

SC SC SC SC SC SC SC SC SC SC SC

See § 290-1YX

51.  Bus station, intermodal transit center NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP SE NP NP

52. Aquaculture NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P NP

53. Micro Brewery, Micro-distillery NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP

54. Craft and artisan assembly and manufacturing 

such as cabinet making, woodworking, glass 

making, blacksmithing, boat building and sail 

manufacturing

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP

55.  Water-dependent seafood processing, fishing 

activities

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP SE SE NP

56. Data center NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP

57. Bio manufacturing NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP

58.  Warehousing and storage in association with 

permitted marine commercial activities

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP SE SE NP

Use

Additional Use 

Regulations

Utilities, Communications, Transportation

Industrial and Related Uses



R-LD R-MD R-HD RV-1 RV-2 NC TC CP MC RC RPC

59.  Customary home occupation (1 employee)
C C C C C C C C C C C See § 290-11ZY

60.  Home occupation (2 employees) SE SE SE C C C C C C SE C See § 290-11AAX

61.  Garage, yard, estate sale C C C C C C C C C C C See § 290-11BBAA

62.  Carnival or similar transient enterprise NP NP NP NP NP NP NP SC SC NP NP See § 290-11CCBB

63.  Temporary building incidental to construction
NP NP NP NP NP C C C C NP NP See § 290-11DDCC

64.  Dwelling for resident watchman NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP

Unclassified Uses

Use

Zoning Districts
Conditions or 

Additional Use 

Regulations



C
hesapeake B

ay

Fishi
ng Creek

BAYSIDE RD

CH
ESA

PEA
KE 

VIL
LAG

E

LAWRIN

DA
VID

WE
SLE

Y S
TIN

NE
TT

OAK
RIDGE

BAYVIEW HILLS

GREEN
SPR

ING

SANSBURY

C S
T

HERITAGE

CAVALCADE

CREST
VIEW

TARTAN
HILL GAIL

1ST

WHIRLWAY

BEAUDET

BAND SHELL

29TH

OLD BAYSIDE 11TH

12TH 11TH

STR
EAM
WALK

MEARS

DONAU

18TH

30TH

27TH

28TH

13TH

MO
FFA

T COX

B S
T

14TH

DAKOTA

26TH

H ST

WOODSHIRE
DE FOREST

ELM

HARBORDE
LO

RE
S

WO
OD

LAN
D

CHESAPEAKE BEACH

HA
RR

ISO
N

STREAM WALK

GORDON STINNETT

RIC
HFI

ELD

LEG
AC

Y

Map Created: July 11, 2022
Mapping Data Sourced From: Calvert County GIS,

https://www.calvertcountymd.gov/745/Download-Data

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500 Feet

¯

RC

R-LD

R-HD

R-MD

RC

RC

RC

RC

R-LD
R-LD

R-LDRC

R-MD

NC

PC

R-MD

MC

R-HD

R-HD
MC

RC
TC

R-HD

RC

RC

RPC

RPC

RC

RC

R-LD
RC

RV-2

RV-1 TC

RV-1

RV-1

RCNC

RV-2

RV-1 RV-1

RV-2

TC

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT

Zoning Map
Town of Chesapeake Beach

R-MD

R-MD

RC

Zoning Districts
RPC    Residential Planned Community
TC       Town Commercial
MC      Maritime Commercial
PC       Plaza Commercial
NC      Neighborhood Commercial

RC        Resource Conservation
R-LD     Residential, Low Density
R-MD    Residential, Medium Density
R-HD    Residential, High Density
RV-1     Residential Village 1
RV-2     Residential Village 2


	July 27,  2022 Planning & Zoning Agenda 
	June 22 2022 Planning  Zoning Meeting minutes
	Copy of ZoningAmendment-Table 1 Permitted Uses _PUBLICHEARINGDRAFT
	PlanningCommission-PublicHearingDraft-ZoningTextAmendements
	ZoningAmendment-Table 1 Permitted Uses _PUBLICHEARINGDRAFT rev
	PH Zoning Map



